
Municipal Planning Commission - Meeting Agenda March 7, 2023, 5:30pm Page 1 
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 

Tuesday March 7, 2022 
5:30 pm 

 
 

1. Date/Place: March 7, 2022, Seniors Drop-in Centre 4918 50th Avenue, Bentley AB 
 

2. Members Attendance: 
 

Mayor Rathjen 
Deputy Grimsdale 
Councillor Eastman 
Councillor Hansen 
Councillor Valiquette 
 
CAO/Development Officer and Recording Secretary – Marc Fortais 

 
3. Amendments and Acceptance of Agenda 

 
4. Previous Minutes: 

 
a) Municipal Planning Commission Minutes October 11, 2022 

 
5. New Business 

 
a) Application for consideration: Karen Hick & Gary Johnson – Oversize 

Garage Build on 4837 49th avenue. 
 

The applicant is requesting the following: 
 

• Relaxation of restriction that the accessory building shall not be 
situated closer to the street than the main building (in this case the 
garage structure will be 3.2 metres closer to 49th street than the 
house) 

• Approval of discretionary use for a garage structure greater than 
70m2 (735.5ft2) (structure will be 1,344 ft2) 
 

6. Adjournment  



Municipal Planning Commission – Meeting Minutes October 11, 2022, 6pm 1 
  _____ 
  Initial 

 
 

 
Minutes of the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of the Town of Bentley  

Tuesday October 11, 2022 

 

Date & Place Minutes of the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of the 
Town of Bentley held Tuesday, October 11, 2022, at 6:00pm, in the 
Seniors Drop-In Centre 4918 50th Ave, Bentley AB 

 
 
In Attendance Mayor Rathjen 
 Deputy Mayor Eastman 
 Councillor Hansen 
 Councillor Valiquette 
 Councillor Grimsdale 
 CAO/Development Officer and Recording Secretary – Marc Fortais 
 
 
Call To Order Mayor Rathjen called the meeting to order at 6:00pm 
 
 
Agenda  

Motion MPC 1/2022 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the  
Agenda of the October 11, 2022, Municipal Planning Commission 
Meeting be accepted.” 

         Carried 
 
 
Previous Minutes  

Motion MPC 2/2022 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT 
the minutes of the June 22, 2021, Municipal Planning Commission 
Meeting of the Town of Bentley be confirmed.” 

 
         Carried 
 
 
New Business:  

a) Application for consideration: Denise Pederson & Lake Trail 
Estates – regarding the placement of a 2002 Winalta 
Manufactured Home Model #21837 on Lake Trail Estates Park 
Lot 51 and construction of a deck. 

 



Municipal Planning Commission – Meeting Minutes October 11, 2022, 6pm 2 
  _____ 
  Initial 

 Motion MPC 3/2022 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the 
Municipal Planning Commission approve the Development Permit 
Application 07-22 from Denise Pederson and Lake Trail Estates for 
the placement of a 2002 Winalta Manufactured Home Model 
#21837 with dimensions of 16ft X 76ft including the construction of 
a deck 45ft X 12ft and a height above 2ft to be placed on lot 51 at 
Lake Trail Estates; AND 

 
 THAT the Development Permit Application 07-22 also be approved 

with a relaxation of the age restriction maximum requirement of 5 
years to allow the 20-year-old manufactured home to be placed on 
Lot 51; AND 

 
THAT a variance of the rear yard setback from the minimum of 
19.6ft be granted to allow once corner of the manufactured home to 
be 10ft from the lot line; AND 
 
THAT a variance of the front yard setback from the minimum of 
19.6ft be granted to allow one corner of the manufactured home to 
be 15ft from the lot line. 
        Carried 
 

 
Adjournment 
 

Motion 3/2022 Moved by Deputy Mayor Eastman, “THAT the 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting held on Tuesday October 
11, 2022, be adjourned 6:05pm. 
 
        Carried 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 
 Mayor Greg Rathjen     CAO Marc Fortais 



March 7, 2023, Municipal Planning Commission – Development Permit Oversized Garage Build 4837 49th Ave 

 
 
 
Agenda Date:  March 7, 2023 
Agenda Item: Karen Hick & Gary Johnson – Oversize Garage Build on 4837 49th Ave 
 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
THAT the Municipal Planning Commission consider the approval of the Development Permit 
Application 01-23 (Attachment #1) from Bob Aldous, submitted on behalf of the homeowners Karen 
Hick and Gary Johnson. The application is being considered as a discretionary use in the R2A 
District. 
 
This permit application is being considered by the Municipal Planning Commission (MPC) due to the 
size of the structure. Under the Land Use Bylaw (LUB) a permit application for an accessory 
residential building can be considered for approval by the Development Officer if the total floor area is 
less than 70m2 (735.5ft2). Any accessory building with a proposed floor area above 70m2 (735.5ft2) 
must be considered by the MPC. The application is for the construction of a large garage structure 28’ 
wide X 48’ long X 16’ high for a total square footage of 1,344 square feet. The applicant has indicated 
that the exterior finishes will match the existing house and that all setback requirements for the R2A 
District will be met as follows: 
 
Side Yard Setback   3.28 metres  (LUB requirement is 1.5 metres) 
Rear Yard Setback   1 metre (LUB requirement is 1 metre) 
Side Yard Setback (49th St side) 6.5 metres (LUB requirement for driveway at least 6 metres) 
  
The garage will be located at the rear of the house and will be placed horizontal on the lot, with the 
driveway and vehicular access facing 49th street. The proposed height for the accessory building will 
not exceed 16 ft and the LUB allows for up to 16.4 ft and shall not exceed the height of the main 
building.  
 
Under the Land Use Bylaw an accessory building shall not be situated closer to the street than the 
main building, in this case, due to the size of the garage structure it will be situated closer to 49th St 
than the existing house by approximately 3.2 metres. The applicant is requesting a variance to allow 
the garage structure to sit closer to the street than the house. The Development Officer recommends 
approval of this request for variance as the neighboring house to the rear of this property does not 
front 49th street, but fronts 48th avenue, see map (Attachment #2). As a result of the characteristics of 
the block and the rear neighboring house orientation, it is not felt that allowing a variance of this 
requirement will be detrimental to the design, character, and appearance of the neighborhood.  
 
In addition, across the street on 49th street there is an existing garage structure, which faces 49th 
street, and therefore it is felt that the proposed design and orientation for the garage structure will 
match existing properties on the street. 
 
 



March 7, 2023, Municipal Planning Commission – Development Permit Oversized Garage Build 4837 49th Ave 

 
 
 
 
It is of the opinion of the Development Officer that the permit for the construction of a garage structure 
with a total square footage of 1,344 square feet be approved by the Municipal Planning Commission 
with the requested variances as detailed in this report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the Municipal Planning Commission Approve the Development Permit Application 01-23 from 
Bob Aldous, submitted on behalf of and signed by the homeowners Karen Hick and Gary Johnston for 
the construction of an oversized garage with dimensions of 28ft wide X 48ft long X 16ft high (1,344 
square feet) as a discretionary use in the R2A District; AND 
 
THAT the Development Permit Application 01-23 also be approved with a relaxation of the 
requirement that it not be situated closer to 49th street than the main building; AND 
 
THAT the proposed accessory building will not be any more than 3.2 metres closer to 49th street than 
the main building and that it will be at least 6 metres set back from 49th street to accommodate the 
driveway and vehicular access that has been proposed; AND 
 
THAT all other setback requirements, height restrictions and any other requirements as outlined by 
the Land Use Bylaw for construction of an accessory building will be met by the builder as proposed in 
the application. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Development Permit Application 
2) Map of Block 

 
 
 

        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    














	Agenda Municipal Planning Commisison Meeting March 7, 2023.pdf
	Meeting Minutes - Municpal Planning Commission Meeting October 11, 2022
	MPC - New Business - Development Permit for Garage Build 4837 49th Ave
	Attachment #1  Development Permit 01-23 4837 49th Ave
	Attachment #2 Map of Block

